
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular City Council Meeting
Thursday, January 12, 2023

7 PM, Community Meeting Room, 100 Village Center Drive
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - Some or all City Council members may participate by telephone or other electronic means
pursuant to Minn. Stat. §13D.021. Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically from a
remote location may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number:
1-312-626-6799, Webinar ID: 886 6566 7642 or by joining the meeting via the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88665667642.  Individuals wishing to monitor the meeting remotely may do
so in real time by watching the livestream of the meeting on North Oaks Channel 16 and on the City’s
website. Due to the existing COVID-19 Health Pandemic, no more than five (5) members of the public
may be in Council Chambers (Community Room, 100 Village Center Drive,  MN) during the meeting.
Once room capacity is met, anyone wishing to attend the meeting above the five (5) members of the
public who may be present in the room during the meeting will be required to monitor the meeting
remotely.

1.  Call to Order

2.  Roll Call

3.  Pledge of Allegiance

4.  Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Council during the
public comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action will be taken
by the Council on items raised during the public comment period unless the item appears as an agenda
item for action.

5.  Approval of Agenda

6.  Consent Agenda  - These are items that are considered routine and can be acted upon with one vote.
6a.  Approval of Licenses:

Arborists: A + A Tree & Landscaping; Aaron Boyd's Tree Service; Alex's Lawn and Turf; Balsam Tree & Shrub
Care, Inc.; Budget Tree Service; Davey Company; The F.A. Bartlett Tree Experts; Hearth & Home
Technologies; Hugo's Tree Care, Inc.; Langer's Tree LLC; NWI Tree and Landscaping; Precision Landscape
and Tree, Inc.; SavATree; Twin City Tree Authority; Vineland Tree Care; Woodchuck Tree Care LLC;
Woodland Restorations

1



City Council January 12, 2023

2

General Contractor: Kraus-Anderson Construction Company

Mechanical: Affordable Comfort dba Apollo Heating & Air; Aquarius Home Services; Assured Comfort Heating &
Air Conditioning, LLC; Bonfe's Plumbing Heating & Air Service Inc.; Centerpoint Energy Source Corp;
Glowing Hearth and Home; GT Plumbing & Heating LLC; Hero Home Services, Inc.; Hoffman Cooling &
Heating; Home Energy Center; HomeWorks Services LLC; Hugo Plumbing & Pump Service, Inc.;
Mechanical Air Systems, Inc.; Metro Heating & Cooling LLC; Metropolitan Mechanical Contractors, Inc.;
MSP Plumbing, Heating & Air; Riccar Heating & Air Conditioning; Sabre Plumbing Heating & A/C, Inc.
Schulties Plumbing; Snelling Company; Standard Heating & Air Conditioning; Tim's Quality Plumbing; Twin
City Heating, Air & Electric; Twin City Fireplace

6b.  Approval of Resolution 1473 - Resolution Updating Designated Polling Locations for the 2023 School Board
Election
1473. Updating Designated Polling Places for 2023 Elections.pdf

6c.  Approval of City Council Minutes of 12.8.2022 TNT and Regular Meeting, 12.30.2022 Special Meeting, and
1.9.2023 Special Meeting 
12.08.2022 TNT City Council Minutes.pdf

12.08.2022 City Council Minutes v2.pdf

12.30.2022 CCsp Minutes.pdf

1.9.2023 CCsp Minutes.pdf

6d.  Approval of 2023 City Hall Holiday schedule
2023 Holiday Schedule.pdf

6e.  Approval of NYFS agreement
North Oaks and NYFS Agreement 12.2023.pdf

6f.  Approve resolution of support for Ramsey County Interstate 35E/County Road J
Corridors of Commerce Grant Application 

1474. Support for cty rd j 35E.pdf

7.  Petitions, Requests & Communications  - Deputy Matt Lassegard Report

8.  Unfinished Business

9.  New Business
9a.  Public Hearing - Consider Ordinance amending City Code Chapter 110 Tobacco Regulations

DOCSOPEN-#847629-v2-Amend_Tobacco_ORDINANCE_110.pdf

9b.  Public Hearing - Consider Ordinance adopting 2023 Fee Schedule

9c.  Consider appointments for Planning Commission 

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1710142/1473._Updating_Designated_Polling_Places_for_2023_Elections.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1724910/12.08.2022_TNT_City_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1724911/12.08.2022_City_Council_Minutes_v2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1724920/12.30.2022_CCsp_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1738453/1.9.2023_CCsp_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1735533/2023_Holiday_Schedule.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1734709/North_Oaks_and_NYFS_Agreement_12.2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1738444/1474._Support_for_cty_rd_j_35E.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1734688/DOCSOPEN-_847629-v2-Amend_Tobacco_ORDINANCE_110.pdf


City Council January 12, 2023

3

9d.  Consider annual appointment resolution

9e.  Consider 2023 City Council meeting schedule

10.  Council Member Reports

11.  City Administrator Reports

12.  City Attorney Reports

13.  Miscellaneous
13a.  City Forester December 2022 Report

December 2022 in Review.pdf

13b.  2022 Building Official Report 
Building report Annual 2022 Summary.pdf

2022 Building Inspector Report detail.pdf

14.  13Adjournment  - The next meeting of the City Council is Thursday, February 9, 2023.

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1724548/December_2022_in_Review.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1728492/Building_report_Annual_2022_Summary.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1728493/2022_Building_Inspector_Report_detail.pdf


 
 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. 1473 
 

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING POLLING LOCATIONS FOR THE 2023  
SCHOOL BOARD ELECTION  

 
 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes 204B.16, Subd. 1 requires the City Council, by ordinance 
or resolution, to designate polling places for the upcoming year; and  
 

WHEREAS, changes to the polling places locations may be made at least 90 days before 
the next election if one or more of the authorized polling places becomes unavailable for use; and  

 
WHEREAS, the School Board Election is November 7, 2023.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the North Oaks City Council hereby 

designates the following polling places for elections conducted in the city in 2023:  
 

Precinct 1  City of North Oaks   
100 Village Center Drive, Suite 150 
 

Precinct 2  August 8th Primary:  
North Oaks Council Chambers 
100 Village Center Drive, Suite 150 
November General Election: 
North Oaks Golf Club 
54 East Oaks Road, North Oaks 
 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the city clerk is hereby authorized to 
designate a replacement meeting the requirements of the Minnesota Election Law for any polling 
place designated in this Resolution that becomes unavailable for use by the City;  

 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the city clerk is directed to send a copy of 

this resolution to the Ramsey County Elections Office.  

 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks this ____ day of January, 2023. 
 
 
      By:  ________________________________  
       Krista Wolter 
      Its: Mayor 
Attested: 
 
By:  ________________________________  
 Stephanie Marty 
Its: Deputy Clerk 

4



North Oaks Truth in Taxation 

Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

December 8, 2022 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ries called the meeting to order at 6:45 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Council Members Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Sara Shah, Tom 

Watson. 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Jim Thomson, Engineer Tim Korby. 

Others Present: Videographer Kenny Ronnan  

A quorum was declared present.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion by Watson, seconded by Shah, to approve the agenda. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Truth-in-Taxation Hearing 2023 Budget/Levy 

 

Administrator Kress noted one error found in the budget that has been corrected. The correction 

dropped the tax rate down to about 11.53% and will save residents an additional $20-$40. He 

noted 11.53% is one of the lowest tax rates in the last 10 years for a total levy of $2,182,645.  

 

2. Discussion and possible action on 2023 Budget/Levy 

 

Mayor Ries thanked Member Hara and Staff for all their work on the budget over the last few 

months.  

 

Member Hara hopes the new City Council can resolve the police contract and either receive 

services they pay for with an additional person or the extra fee is taken off by the Sherriff’s 

Department. 

 

Member Watson stated compensation increases for personnel is shown about 5%. Regarding the 

Sherriff contract and Lake Johanna Fire, Member Watson is not pleased about either of them. 

The Sherriff’s increase is 8.2% and the City has never had the opportunity to truly negotiate that. 

Regarding Lake Johanna Fire, that budget is 8.7% and although Member Watson gave his 

economic inflation speech, the budget passed 5-2 with one fireman joining Member Watson’s 

vote. He noted if they continue to spend money at the rate of inflation they are compounding the 

problem and not solving it. Member Watson spoke about the Building Official budget, noting 

that person gets a percentage of whatever fees are and the contract did not change. The only 

thing that will generate more revenue for the Building Official is if the City changes the fee 

5



Minutes of the Truth in Taxation Meeting  December 8, 2022

  
 

P a g e  | 2 

schedule. Member Watson appreciates that the City is approving a levy that is one of the lower 

increases in several years.  

 

Mayor Ries mentioned they will reserve the vote on the budget/levy for the City Council 

meeting. Administrator Kress noted the Resolution with the updated levy number was complete, 

if council wished to close out the agenda item and there was no further discussion. 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to approve Resolution #1470 with a levy of 

$2,182,645. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mayor Ries adjourned the meeting at 6:59 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  

 

Date approved____________ 

 

6



North Oaks City Council 

Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

December 8, 2022 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor Kara Ries. Council Members Rich Dujmovic, Jim Hara, Sara Shah, Tom 

Watson. 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Jim Thomson, Engineer Tim Korby 

Others Present: Videographer Kenny Ronnan  

A quorum was declared present.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Ries led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Lisa Dujmovic, 15 Black Lake Road, thanked the City Council Members for their service to the 

community. She noted Member Watson’s history and knowledge are irreplaceable and said 

Member Hara has done great and given so much time and business talents for many committees. 

Ms. Dujmovic thinks Mayor Ries embodies what every coach looks for in their players; she 

gives all that she has to everything and leaves it all on the court. She cannot think of anyone who 

has tried harder than Mayor Ries to keep the City a premier landing place for people and she has 

done amazing work. Ms. Dujmovic believes the three Members who are leaving are some of the 

heroes of the story within the City. Heroes have to deal with obstacles, mischaracterizations, and 

low-blows, but in the end the story always works out. To Ms. Dujmovic’s personal hero Member 

Dujmovic, he is a man of character and integrity. When a letter was circulated at the eleventh 

hour before the election which did not get his voting record correct and implied he had a 

personality that anyone watching the meetings would realize is completely false. When she asked 

if she should circulate an email to let people know, he said it was okay and that he only cared 

what Ms. Dujmovic thought of him, and if God wanted him to win he would; if not, he would 

move on.  Ms. Dujmovic stated she is proud that he lives in such a way as to please his maker, he 

is an ordinary guy who is an extraordinary leader and she is very proud to be his wife and best 

friend. She thanked the City Council. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Ries noted they will remove item 6e which has been resolved. She would like to add an 

item under New Business regarding a contract for staff member Stephanie Marty.  

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to approve the Agenda as amended.  

 

Shah is concerned without input documents to review regarding the added item under New 

Business. She asked if they can receive more information about this. 

 

7



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  December 8, 2022

  
 

P a g e  | 2 

Mayor Ries asked to add it to the agenda and then they will talk about next steps and how to 

address it. 

 

Shah noted they usually move items to a Closed Session when discussing staff and asked if this 

is appropriate. 

 

Attorney Thomson replied based on the wording of the agenda item he cannot think of anything 

that is not appropriate.  

 

Motion carried as Members Dujmovic, Hara, Ries, and Watson voted for; Member Shah 

voted against.  

 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approval of Minutes from City Council November 15, 2022 Special Meeting 

 

b. Approval of Licenses: Arborists: Northern Arborists; The Davey Tree Experts; 

Mechanical: The Fireplace Professionals LLC 

 

c. Approval of November 2022 City Financials 

 

d. Approval of Resolution 1471 - 2023 Liquor Licenses 

 

e. Approval of amendment to Building Official contract 

This item was removed from the Consent Agenda. 

 

f.  Approval of Resolution 1472 - Resolution Designating Polling Locations for the 2023 

School Board Election 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Dujmovic, to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

7. PETITIONS, REQUESTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

a. Deputy Matt Lassegard Report  

 

Deputy Lassegard introduced himself, noting he has been doing tours of the City, and he 

understands the importance of safety on the trails and dispatching law enforcement and fire 

department as first responders. He spoke about three car accidents on the periphery of the City. 

 

Mayor Ries noted road and traffic safety is extremely important in North Oaks.  

 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

9. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Contract with City Clerk Staff member 

 

8



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  December 8, 2022

  
 

P a g e  | 3 

Mayor Ries noted the Staff member who does the Accounting and City Clerk position, Stephanie 

Marty, has been with the City for 20 years. She has extensive knowledge, has been a valuable 

asset to the City, and Mayor Ries thinks it is a good idea to reward Staff members that have 

shown two decades of service with a contract of employment. Mayor Ries proposes to draft a 

contract with the City versus what they currently have regarding the role. She noted this would 

be a basic employment agreement contract with similar terms to what Administrator Kress has. 

 

Member Watson was part of the team that hired Ms. Marty and would be in favor of the contract. 

He does not think this would do any more than memorialize the arrangement the City has with 

Ms. Marty and would provide a degree of comfort and a bit more security. He thinks it is good 

protection for the City.  

 

Member Shah asked if they have a City handbook and whether the City Administrator makes the 

recommendation or the City Council.  

 

Attorney Thomson clarified the position reports to the City Administrator but the City Council 

hires, fires, and retains employees. If the Council wants to have a contract with an employee they 

have the authority to do so.  

 

Member Shah would like to see some of the input documents and contract.  

 

Watson suggested putting a draft together and circulating the document for review and 

discussion of terms. 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to direct Staff to prepare a draft agreement and 

direct Member Hara, Administrator Kress, and Attorney Thomson to bring it back to the 

City Council.  Motion carried as Members Dujmovic, Hara, Ries, and Watson voted for; 

Member Shah voted against.  

 

The Commissioners discussed the Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) for full time and part 

time employees. 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Hara, to increase full staff by 5.5%, and part time staff 

by 7% for 2023. Motion pass unanimously. 

 

Administrator Kress noted he didn’t have a need to conduct a formal annual performance review 

to gain feedback. He asked councilors to provide any additional feedback to him at any time. 

 

10. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  

 

Member Hara gave an update on the NRC meeting, noting it could be a quarterly (rather than 

monthly) meeting. He thanked the City Council and Staff and said being on the Council has been 

a big learning experience for him. He wishes the new Council the best of luck.  

 

Member Watson stated there are vacancies on the NRC and they must be residents of North 

Oaks. Regarding White Bear Lake and water, a group met and went through nine talking points; 

9



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  December 8, 2022

  
 

P a g e  | 4 

they will put together a further document. He spoke about reinstating the JPA, withdrawing the 

cancellation notice, and putting performance indicators into the JPA. They also need to figure out 

if there is a role for Vadnais Lakes Water Management Organization (VLAWMO) in the 

groundwater business. Member Watson spoke about managing trees in Red Forest and noted 

Forester Mark Rehder is putting together a draft for the City with technical wisdom on managing 

hardwood forests. Member Watson will miss Member Dujmovic at the City Council table, he is a 

man of great integrity, and Mr. Watson respects that Member Dujmovic is a team guy. Member 

Watson has utmost respect for Member Hara’s father and noted Member Hara is a chip-off-the-

old-block. It has been great getting to work with Member Hara. Member Watson spoke about 

Mayor Ries noting she has worked extremely hard and most that know her have a great deal of 

respect for that work. He thinks her integrity is wonderful and she does not have to apologize for 

anything. He appreciates getting to know Mayor Ries.  

 

Member Dujmovic shared that Jim McGillis hosted his final North Oaks Home Owners’ 

Association (NOHOA) Safe Communities, Safe Roads Committee meeting and he is grateful for 

Mr. McGillis’ leadership. NOHOA will require additional feedback on speed mitigation before 

they would like the City to progress with mitigation. Member Dujmovic thanked Deputy Lee, 

Deputy Burrell, and Deputy Lassegard for their service to the City. He thanked Staff for their 

help noting they are a pleasure to work with. Member Dujmovic stated Mayor Ries was kind 

from the first moment they met, and has given her time in listening and understanding which 

meant a lot. Member Dujmovic thanked Member Watson who rose to the occasion and came 

through when the community needed him and noted he exemplifies service. Member Dujmovic 

noted everything Member Hara touches is done exceptionally well, and he brought tremendous 

business sense and wisdom. Member Dujmovic thanked Member Shah for the way she cares, is 

dedicated, and has passion to see the right thing done. He thanked his wife Lisa, and wished 

good luck to the incoming Council.  

 

Member Shah thanked Members Hara, Watson, and Ries as their terms come to an end. She 

appreciates all their time and efforts in serving the community.  

 

Mayor Ries thanked everyone for the opportunity to serve the community, it is a wonderful 

community filled with amazing volunteers and well-educated people. She spoke at a Rotary Club 

meeting recently about service with gratitude and she is grateful to have gotten to know many 

people, to work on issues and contracts, and to work with surrounding communities. She thanked 

Member Watson for all his hours on the phone, and stated he is a huge asset to the community. 

Mayor Ries noted Member Hara’s mind is amazing with numbers and the City is in a great spot 

because of his accounting, brilliant mind with numbers, and detail. Mayor Ries noted Member 

Dujmovic has integrity, honesty, intelligence, and she could go on with the level of detail noting 

he is one of the most professional people she has ever met. It was a pleasure working with him in 

this job. Mayor Ries thanked Member Shah for her dedication on the City Council, noting she is 

representing young mothers with young kids and it is not easy to be the minority voice on the 

City Council. Member Shah stood up for what she believed is right and that is something to be 

very proud of. She thanked the City Attorney, City Engineers, and City Staff for their work for 

the North Oaks. Mayor Ries noted it has been a pleasure representing the residents.  

 

11. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 

10



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  December 8, 2022

  
 

P a g e  | 5 

 

Administrator Kress has enjoyed getting to know everyone at the table, both professionally and 

personally. He noted being on the City Council can be at thankless job, and is a lot of time and 

effort. He thanked everyone for their service.  

 

Engineer Korby has enjoyed working with the City Council and noted they will continue to serve 

in many ways, even if they are not serving in that role anymore. He spoke about their 

collaboration regarding trees and the environment and thanked the Council for their efforts and 

hard work.  

 

12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS  

 

Attorney Thomson admires anyone who holds the role of City Council Member, they do an 

amazing amount of work and are basically volunteers. He noted this job has not been boring and 

he looks forward to the future. He shared a motion regarding Cherrywood was denied by the 

Court of Appeals and will update the City Council in January on the case.  

 

13. MISCELLANEOUS  

 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION by Hara, seconded by Dujmovic, to adjourn the meeting at 8:25 p.m. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  

 

Date approved____________ 

 

11



North Oaks City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

December 30, 2022 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Ries called the meeting to order at 12:00 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor Kara Ries, Councilmembers Rich Dujmovic, Tom Watson, Jim Hara (joined at 

12:03 p.m.) 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Jim Thomson 

Absent: Councilor Sara Shah 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

3. CONSIDER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT FOR DEPUTY CLERK 

 

• Mayor Ries introduced the contract drafted by Attorney Thomson to recognize 22 Year 

employee Deputy Clerk Stefanie Marty. 

• Watson inquired whether Marty has reviewed.  Ries stated she has had verbal discussions 

and conversations with her, but doesn’t believe she has yet seen the final physical copy. 

Attorney Thomson noted that it would be best if she could review and sign by end of day 

12/31/22. 

• Mayor Ries noted in order to best protect the City, it would be good to protect her 

institutional knowledge, value and effort she has brought to our City over the many years.  

• Dujmovic agreed that she has excellent presence, knowledge and interpersonal skills.  

• Watson stated there are lots of openings and turnover within Twin cities government 

organizations and there is value to keeping our knowledge within our City. 

• Hara agreed that staff that knows ins & outs of unique City should be recognized and 

retained. 

MOTION by Dujmovic, seconded by Watson, to approve the employment agreement with 

Deputy Clerk Stephanie Marty. Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

• Administrator Kress will input her January ’23 salary and forward the contract to the Deputy 

Clerk for review and electronic signature. 

• Watson recognized the passing of Councilmember Hara’s father and his contributions to our 

City. The funeral service is to take place on Tuesday, January 3rd, 2023. 

• Kress reminded Councilmembers who are not continuing as part of City Council in 2023 to 

drop off City issued computers and other materials at the City Office.  

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

12



Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting  December 30, 2022

  
 

P a g e  | 2 

 

MOTION by Watson, seconded by Ries, to adjourn the meeting at 12:09 p.m. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  

 

Date approved____________ 

13



North Oaks City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

January 9, 2023 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Wolter called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor Krista Wolter, Councilmembers Tom Watson, Sara Shah, John Shuman, Mark 

Azman 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Jim Thomson (via zoom) 

A quorum was declared present.  

*Any participants on Zoom had difficulty hearing, due to issue with zoom connection in 

Chambers. Minutes to be shared with public.  

 

3. DISCUSSION ITEMS  

 

3a. Discussion on 2023 annual appointment resolution 

• Mayor Wolter suggested it seems relevant to review some of our key contractual 

commitments to the city.  

• Watson noted that the many of the key contractors such as Planner, Engineer, Attorney were 

newly hired 2 years ago. The building official contractor was signed 18 months ago. Some of 

areas such as Fire and Police services have more limited options, and would take much more 

time to come up with alternatives. 

• Administrator Kress asked for guidance on which contractors they are focused on. Consensus 

was Planner, Engineer and Attorney.  

• Azman noted that he has been disappointed in some issues over the past 2 years, and feels it 

is relevant to review some of these services again. 

• Shah mentioned she would also be open to reviewing some of these parties. She would like 

to see if Attorney Nason would be interested in working with our City again. 

• Councilor Shuman agreed that it is a good idea to review key contractors. 

• Administrator Kress will review before February Meeting what firms may interested in 

coming back to meet and make a presentation to work with North Oaks. 

• Kress also asked Councilors to take a look at the Council Appointment list for various 

external commissions, to determine what they might be interested in serving on. Follow-up 

discussion to take place at the Thursday regular Council meeting.  

 

3b. Discussion on Natural Resource Commission  

• Administrator Kress stated that over the past year, the Natural Resource commission has had 

difficulty maintaining consistency and a clear agenda for meetings.   

14



Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting  December 30, 2022

  
 

P a g e  | 2 

• Council Azman wasn’t clear on their reporting structure and what their “charge” and 

objective is.  

• Watson noted the Natural Resource Commission objectives are in the Comprehensive Plan 

and suggested Kevin circulate information on their objectives.  He shared historical 

information on how the NOHOA NEST committee was created during a lull in City. He 

suggested it may be worth discussing since NOHOA has budget issues, perhaps NOHOA and 

City can work together on issues of Natural Resources. Since North Oaks is considered a 

wildlife refuge, want to make sure DNR stays out of it.  

• Shah noted that the Natural Resource Commission is lacking clear objectives and goals from 

Council.  If council does a strategy session, it may assist in developing goals for NRC. 

• Azman felt it important to maintain the Natural Resources Commission to ensure the City 

maintains a presence and focus on our natural environment.  

• Discussion to be tabled until after strategy session to determine if clear items for NRC to 

work on.  

 

3c. Discussion on Planning Commission and appointments 

• Administrator Kress noted there are 3 openings for the planning commission. There is a 

current policy in place for addressing openings. Kress suggested that Councilor Azman and 

the Mayor meet with the applicants this week, with the goal of coming back with 

recommendations by the regular Council meeting Thursday.  

• Kress stated there are no current projects in the CUP queue right now, and current 

commissioners stay on until the positions are filled.  

• Councilors asked for the applications from all applicants to be sent to them.  

• Watson stated he’d like to be involved in the appointment of Planning Commissioners. Feels 

it is relevant to take look at ordinance, the cases in front of us and behind us, and get sense of 

the qualifications needed for it.  

• Watson indicated that he is was not part of the interviews, then he might reach out to the 

candidates directly to chat with them. Councilor Shah and other felt this was not an 

appropriate precedent to set, and to let the policy of 2 member of Council conduct interviews 

and come back with recommendations was best course of action. 

• Azman would like to review the policy and make sure it is followed exactly. Feels the 

Planning Commission chair should be involved in the interviews as well. In this instance, 

there is no Planning Commission chair as he has vacated this role to serve on Council.  

• Mayor Wolter feels it is important to get the seats filled soon as possible. She would like to 

move forward following policy with Kress/Azman/Wolter conducting interviews.  

• Administrator Kress has called to confirm that current planning commissioners are still 

interested in continuing. The only party he has not heard from yet was Ostlund. He will 

follow up prior to the Thursday Council meeting.  

 

3d. Discussion on setting Council Strategy and Orientation session   

• Mayor Wolter would like to conduct a City Council Strategy session the weekend of January 

21- 22nd. Councilor Watson noted that he is busy that weekend, but can do the following. He 

15



Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting  December 30, 2022

  
 

P a g e  | 3 

would prefer to leave Sunday’s free of work if possible.  Azman stated he would like to have 

all councilors present.  Administrator Kress asked Councilors to send their availability to him 

to find an alternate date for this strategy session. 

• Administrator Kress will look scheduling a joint special orientation session with PZ and City 

Councilors.  Watson noted Pam Whitmore, formerly with League of Minnesota Cities, 

conducted the last orientation session.   Kress suggested it be spread into two sessions to 

cover more material.  

 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION by Wolter, seconded by Shah, to adjourn the meeting at 5:42 p.m. Motion 

carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Kara Ries, Mayor  

 

 

Date approved____________ 

16



 

 

 

 

City of North Oaks 

2023 Holiday Schedule 

January 2  — New Year’s Day (observed) 

January 16 — Martin Luther King Day 

February 20 — President’s Day 

May 29 — Memorial Day 

July 4  — Independence Day 

September 4 — Labor Day 

October 9    — Columbus Day 

November 10  — Veteran’s Day (observed) 

November 23, 24 — Thanksgiving 

December 22, 25, 26  —  Christmas 

 

 

 

17



AGREEMENT 
1.  PARTIES 

 
This agreement is made and entered into by and between the City of 
North Oaks, Minnesota (“Municipality”) and Northeast Youth and Family 
Services (“NYFS”). 

 
2. RECITALS 

 

a. NYFS is a non-profit social service agency whose mission is to meet the 
unmet developmental needs of at-risk youth and families within their 
community environment with emphasis on providing services through 
collaboration and coordination with existing community resources.  These 
services are available to youth and families residing in the northern 
suburbs of Ramsey County, including, but not limited to, the municipalities 
which are signatory to agreements which are identical to this Agreement 
(“participating municipalities”) and students and families from Independent 
School Districts 621, 622, 623, 624, 282, and 832.  

 

b. Through this Agreement the Municipality intends to contract with NYFS to 
provide such services to its residents and to act as a sponsor of NYFS by 
providing financial support, a method to establish appropriate services to 
be provided and policy guidance for its activities. 
 

c. This Agreement shall be used as the formal agreement between NYFS 
and each of the participating municipalities.  This Agreement is intended to 
continue the spirit of cooperation and collaboration in the provision of 
social services between the Municipality and NYFS. 
 

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

In consideration of the mutual understandings of this Agreement, the 
parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

a. Prior Agreements Cancelled.  By execution of this Agreement any prior 
agreements and amendments thereto between the parties are hereby 
cancelled. 
 

b. Services Provided.  NYFS shall provide the Municipality and its residents 
with youth and family programs set forth in the Addendum attached 
hereto. 
 

c. Principles of Service and Program Establishment and Operations.  On a 
yearly basis and prior to submission of its annual budget, as provided for 
hereafter, NYFS shall: 
 

18



i. Report regarding proposed changes in services and programs to 
the Municipality; and 
 

ii. Establish a fair and open bidding/request for proposal (RFP) 
process to contract, manage or provide such services and 
programs, which are not directly provided by NYFS staff. 
 

d. Funding 
 

i. In addition to the participating municipalities’ share of the annual 
budget, funds for the operation of NYFS will be raised by NYFS 
endeavoring to secure user fees, grants and appropriations from 
private organizations, the State of Minnesota, Federal and County 
agencies, and other legal and appropriate sources. 
 

ii. The Municipality shall pay annually to NYFS the base amount listed 
in Exhibit A. This base amount will be adjusted annually for 
inflation/deflation based on the Standard Metropolitan Statistical 
Area Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) and 
municipal population estimates based on MN State Demographic 
Center. Any adjustment in the payment beyond those indicated by 
reference to the CPI-U shall require approval of each of the 
participating municipalities. 
 

iii. Any new municipality joining into this agreement will pay a base 
amount annually to NYFS that is on par with the amount paid by 
current participating municipalities. 
 

iv. Amounts payable by the Municipality shall be paid to NYFS on or 
before January 30th of each year, or at a date mutually agreed upon 
by both parties, to cover the Municipality’s share for that year. 
 

e. Board Representation. The Municipality shall have the right to NYFS 
Board Representation of City Council, staff or community members (as 
designated by the Municipality and approved by NYFS Board) on the 
Board of Directors as either a Board Member or Board Advisor. 
 

f. Further Obligations of NYFS.  In addition to the obligations set forth 
elsewhere in this Agreement, this Agreement is further contingent upon 
NYFS doing the follows: 
 

i. The Bylaws of NYFS shall be amended to add provisions requiring 
an open process for contracting services as provided for in 
paragraph C.2., above, and prohibiting NYFS from supporting or 
opposing individual candidates for election to public office in any of 

19



the participating municipalities; and adding the requirement that 
IRS 501.C3 status be maintained. 
 

ii. On or before June 30, of any year NYFS shall submit the proposed 
city budgeted amount for the subsequent year. 
 

iii. On or before November 30, of any year NYFS shall submit a written 
report to the Municipality including an Annual Report, the audited 
financial statement, and a program specific summary of services 
provided to the municipality; in addition, 30 days from the end of 
each calendar quarter, NYFS shall submit a written report to the 
participating municipality. 
 

iv. Periodically advising the Municipality of services available through 
NYFS to the Municipality’s residents; 
 

v. Establishing a sliding scale for services available through NYFS to 
the Municipality’s residents and periodically advising the 
Municipality of such fees; 
 

vi. Providing other reasonable information requested by the 
Municipality; 
 

vii. Purchasing a policy of liability insurance in the amount of at least 
$1,500,000.00, naming the Municipality as an additional insured 
and providing a copy of the insurance certificate evidencing such 
policy to the Municipality; 
 

viii. Provide the Municipality with a copy of its Articles of Incorporation, 
Bylaws, Amendments thereto, and the IRS tax exempt status letter; 
 

ix. NYFS shall defend and indemnify the Municipality from any and all 
claims or causes of actions brought against the Municipality of any 
matter arising out of this Agreement or the services provided 
pursuant to this Agreement; and, 
 

x. Without the written approval of the Municipality, NYFS will not enter 
into any agreement with any other municipality which differs from 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

g. Term.  The term of this agreement will be through December 31, 2023.  
Unless either party gives at least 6 months written notice of its intent to 
cancel this Agreement effective December 31 of the year in which the 
notice is made, NYFS will continue to provide services to the Municipality 
if a successor agreement has not been executed prior to the end of the 
term.  

20



 
h.  (A)    Distribution of Assets Upon Dissolution. 

 
If NYFS ceases to operate, the Board of Directors will do one of the 
following: 
 

i. Give the assets to one or more non-profit agencies providing similar 
social services in the northern suburbs of Ramsey County; or, 
 

ii. Form a new Foundation to fund appropriate social service 
programming in the northern suburbs of Ramsey County. 

 
The final Distribution of Assets Plan must be approved by the Ramsey 
County District Court. 
 
(B)         Deviation from the Mission. 
 
If the City Council determines that NYFS has materially deviated from its 
mission (See II. Recitals, A.), the City Council may ask the NYFS Board of 
Directors to consider dissolving the agency and liquidating the assets.  
The Board will do one of the following: 
 

iii. Consider the request and by a majority vote deny it. 
 

iv. Consider the request and by a majority vote agree to modify the 
programs to be consistent with the mission. 

 
v. Consider the request and by a majority vote agree with the request 

and move to dissolve the agency and liquidate the assets. 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this date 
set forth below. 
 

MUNICIPALITY 
 

City of North Oaks 
 

By:   ______________________________ 

         Elected Official 

Its:    ______________________________ 

         Clerk/Manager/Administrator 

Dated: ______________________________ 

21



           

NYFS 
 

Northeast Youth & Family Services 
 

By:   _______________________________ 

         President/CEO 

Its:    _______________________________ 

         Chair of the Board of Directors 

Dated: _______________________________ 

  

 12/2022 

22



Northeast Youth & Family Services

Municipal Participation Figures 

Municipal Contract Community Advocate Municipal Contract Community Advocate

2022 2022 2023 2023

Board Approved Increase Dollar increase Board Approved Increase Dollar increase

of 8.5 % based on CPI-U over 2022 of 8.5 % based on CPI-U over 2022

Falcon Heights 11,286.74$     12,246.11$     959.37$     

Little Canada 21,395.16$     23,213.75$     1,818.59$    

Mounds View 27,455.68$     25,750.00$    29,789.41$     2,333.73$    27,938.750$      2,188.750$    

New Brighton 47,625.14$     10,300.00$    51,673.28$     4,048.14$    11,175.50$      875.50$     

North Oaks 10,926.24$     11,854.97$     928.73$     

Roseville 74,720.32$     20,600.00$    81,071.55$     6,351.23$    22,351.00$      1,751.00$    

St. Anthony 18,678.02$     12,875.00$    20,265.65$     1,587.63$    13,969.38$      1,094.38$    

Shoreview 54,548.80$     59,185.45$     4,636.65$    

Birchwood 1,804.56$     1,957.95$     153.39$     

Hugo * 15,000.00$     16,275.00$     1,275.00$    

Mahtomedi 16,562.40$     17,970.20$     1,407.80$    

Vadnais Heights 27,187.88$     29,498.85$     2,310.97$    

City of WBL  52,443.48$     25,750.00$    56,901.18$     4,457.70$    27,938.75$      2,188.75$    

WB Tnship  22,855.70$     24,798.43$     1,942.73$    

Lauderdale 4,678.26$     5,075.91$     397.65$     

Total 407,168.38$     95,275.00$    441,777.69$     34,609.31$    103,373.38$      8,098.38$    

* Hugo splits its support of NYFS with another Community-Based Mental Health agency

23



 
 

Contracted Services 
 
Mental Health Services: 
 

• Shoreview and White Bear Lake Mental Health Clinics – licensed mental 
health staff provide therapy for the emotional health of children, teens, and 
adults.    
 

• School-Based Mental Health – licensed mental health staff provide onsite 
therapy in the schools for the emotional health of students within Roseville, 
Mounds View, and White Bear Lake school districts.    

  
Community Service Programs: 
 

• Youth Diversion – a coordinated range of services for youth who have 
committed minor offenses (e.g. shoplifting, chemical/alcohol use, vandalism) 
to help them focus on positive behavior and prevent recidivism.   
 

• Community Connections – This seven-week program helps youth develop 
social and emotional skills while expanding their horizons and helping them 
deepen their commitment to their own futures through service, post-
secondary education exposure, career exploration, and mentorship.   

 
 

Non-Contracted Services 
 

Mental Health Services: 
 

• Northeast Educational & Therapeutic Services (NETS) – provides therapy 
and academic support for youth in grades 6-12 with severe mental illnesses 
who cannot function in traditional school environments.  

 
  

Community Service Programs: 
 

• Community Advocate – This program serves people who have been 
involved with local law enforcement but have needs that cannot be 
sufficiently addressed by law enforcement alone. This can include: mental 
health issues, family instability, medical care and other needs. Addressing 
these underlying issues reduces the need for law enforcement intervention 
in the future. 

24



 

 

 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF RAMSEY 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 1474 

A RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR: RAMSEY COUNTY INTERSTATE 

35E/COUNTY ROAD J CORRIDORS OF COMMERCE GRANT 

APPLICATION  

 
 

WHEREAS; the Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) is currently 

soliciting candidate projects for its 2022-2023 Corridors of Commerce grant solicitation, 

and 

 

WHEREAS; the 2022-2023 Corridors of Commerce grant solicitation will provide 

approximately $250 million statewide for locally led construction projects that make 

improvements to the MnDOT state highway and interstate system and promote economic 

development and job growth; and 

  

WHEREAS; Ramsey County is currently planning to reconstruct the Interstate 

35E/County Road J interchange in 2024 and is developing a final design for this project 

in partnership with MnDOT, Anoka County, the City of North Oaks, the City of Lino 

Lakes and White Bear Township, and  

 

WHEREAS; Ramsey County was recently awarded a $10 million federal grant 

from Metropolitan Council’s Regional Solicitation to reduce construction costs 

associated with the Interstate 35E/County Road J interchange project; and 

WHEREAS; Ramsey County has submitted a grant application to MnDOT for 2022-2023 

Corridors of Commerce funding to further reduce construction costs associated with the 

Interstate 35E/County Road J interchange project; and 

 

WHEREAS; the Interstate 35E/County Road J interchange project will improve 

interstate access, bicycle and pedestrian mobility and overall congestion and safety for 

transportation users while also creating new economic development opportunities for the 

immediate project area.   

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that (Fill in City/County) hereby 

supports the Ramsey County 2022-2023 Corridors of Commerce grant application to 

MnDOT for the Interstate 35E/County Road J interchange project. 

 

 PASSED BY THE COUNCIL of the City of North Oaks this 12th day of January 

2023. 

 

25



 

 

        APPROVED: 

 

 

        ________________________ 

        Krista Wolter, Mayor 

 

 

       ___________________________ 

       Kevin Kress, City Administrator 

       

 

 

 

26



1 
 

CITY OF NORTH OAKS ORDINANCE _____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 110 OF THE CITY CODE                  

"TOBACCO REGULATIONS" 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS DOES ORDAIN: 
 
Section 1.  Section 110.05, paragraph (B) of the City Code is amended to read as follows: 

 

§ 110.05 BASIS FOR DENIAL OF LICENSE. 

(B) Grounds for denying issuance or renewal. 

(1) The applicant is under the age of 18 21 years. 

(2) The applicant has been convicted within the past 5 years of any violation 
of a federal, state, or local law, ordinance, or other regulation relating to tobacco, or 
tobacco products, or tobacco- related devices. 

 

(3) The applicant has had a license to sell or dispense tobacco, tobacco 
products, or tobacco- related devices revoked within the 12 months preceding the date of 
application. 

 

(4) The applicant fails to meet any requirement in this chapter or fails to 
provide any information required on the application or provides false or misleading 
information. 

 

(5) The applicant is prohibited by federal, state, or other local law, ordinance, 
or other regulation, from holding such a license. 

 
*** 
 

Sec. 2. Section 110.06, Paragraph (A) of the City Code  is amended to read as follows: 
 
§ 110.06 PROHIBITED SALES. 
 
It shall be a violation of this chapter for any person to sell, offer to sell, or dispense any 
tobacco, tobacco product, or tobacco-related device: 
 
(A) To any person under the age of 18 21 years;  

 
*** 

  

27



2 
 

Sec. 3.  Section 110.09 of the City Code is amended to add the following paragraphs: 
 
§110.09 RESPONSIBILITY. 
*** 
(C) All licensees, at their licensed location, shall display a sign in plain view to provide 
public notice that selling any of these products to any person under the age of 21 is illegal 
and subject to penalties. The notice shall be placed in a conspicuous location in the 
licensed establishment and shall be readily visible to any person who is purchasing or 
attempting to purchase these products. The sign shall provide notice that all persons 
responsible for selling these products must verify, by means of photographic 
identification containing the bearer's date of birth, the age of any person under 30 years 
of age. 
 
(D) Each licensee shall verify, by means of government-issued photographic identification 
containing the bearer's date of birth, that the purchaser or person attempting to make 
the purchase is at least 21 years of age. Verification is not required if the purchaser or 
person attempting to make the purchase is 30 years of age or older. It shall not constitute 
a defense to a violation of this subdivision that the person appeared to be 30 years of age 
or older. 
 
*** 

Sec. 4.  Section 110.10, Paragraphs (B), (C), (D), (E) of the City Code are amended to read as 
follows: 
 

§110.10 COMPLIANCE CHECKS AND INSPECTIONS.  
 
*** 
(B) From time to me, but at least once per year, the city shall conduct compliance 

checks by engaging, with the written consent of their parents or guardians, 

minors persons over the age of 15 years at least 17 years of age but less than 18 

21 years, who, with the prior written consent of a parent or guardian if the 

person is under the age of 18, to enter the licensed premises to attempt to 

purchase or obtain tobacco, tobacco products, or tobacco-related devices. 

 
(C) Minors Persons used for the purpose of compliance checks shall be supervised by 
city designated law enforcement officers or other designated city personnel. 

 
(D) Minors Persons used for compliance checks shall not be guilty of unlawful 
possession of tobacco, tobacco products, or tobacco-related devices when the items are 
obtained as a part of the compliance check. 

 
(E) No minor person used in compliance checks shall attempt to use a false 
identification misrepresenting the minor's person’s age, and all minors persons lawfully 

28



3 
 

engaged in a compliance check shall answer all questions about the person’s minor's age 
asked by the licensee or the licensee's employee and shall produce any identification, if 
any exists, for which he or she is asked. 
 
*** 

Sec. 5.  Section 110.12, Paragraph (F) of the City Code is amended to add subparagraph (3) to 
read as follows: 
 
 §110.12 VIOLATIONS. 
 
 *** 
 
 (F) Misdemeanor prosecution. 
 

(3) A person under the age of 21 years who purchases or attempts to purchase tobacco, 
tobacco-related devices, or electronic delivery devices and who uses a driver's license, 
permit, Minnesota identification card, or any type of false identification to misrepresent 
the person's age shall only be subject to the alternative penalty in this Chapter and not 
be subject to misdemeanor prosecution.  
 
*** 
 

Sec. 6.  Section 110.99 of the City Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
§ 110.99 PENALTY. 

(A) Licensees. Any licensee found to have violated this chapter, or whose employee shall 
have violated this chapter, shall be charged an administrative fine of $75 $300 for a first 
violation of this chapter; $200 $600 for a second violation at the same licensed premise s within a 
2436-month period; and $250 $1000 for a third and each subsequent violation at the same premises 
within a 2436-month period. In addition, after the third violation, the license shall be suspended for 
not less than 7 days and may be revoked. 

 

(B) Other persons. Persons other than minors regulated by division (C) below and 
licensees found to be in violation of this chapter shall be charged an administrative fee of $50. 

 

(C) Minor. Minors found in unlawful possession of, or who unlawfully purchase or 
attempt to purchase, tobacco, tobacco products, or tobacco-related devices, shall be referred 
to the Northwest Youth and Family Services diversion program. 

 

(D) Misdemeanor. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the city from seeking 
prosecution as a misdemeanor for any violation of this chapter in addition to any other penalty 
which may be imposed.  

 
*** 

 
 

29



4 
 

Sec. 7.  This Ordinance will be in full force and effect from and after its passage and publication 
according to law. 
 
 Adopted this ___________ day of ____________, 2023 
 
        
       CITY OF NORTH OAKS 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Its Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Kevin Kress, City Administrator 

 

30



December Month in Review 

   

December 2022 

 
• Active inspections for EAB continue. We continue to see lots of signs for EAB and are 

marking trees for removal. 

• The deadline for removal of diseased oaks is set for Feb 1, 2023.  We have been 

conducting re-checks to see progress and to send out reminder notices.  

• Continue to send out notices or talk directly to residents on Operation Clearview and for 

hazard trees. All information is shared with City and NOHOA staff. 

• Provided Arborist workshop to tree care companies seeking licensure in North Oaks. The 

workshop as held on Dec 28th.  

 

 

 

31



2022 Building Official Report 

Summary 

Leon Ohman – Building Official 

 

TOTAL Residential Building/Plumbing/Mechanical Permits issued:     680 

Valuation:  $60,743,821.90 

 

Type of Permit Number Issued Total Valuation Notes 
Total Building all types 277 $59,570,221 New construction =  

15 homes 
$22,668,431 Valuation 

Plumbing 117   

Mechanical 286 $1,173,600 *only commercial 
permits based on 
Valuation 

    

Mechanical Contractor 
Licenses issued 

97   

 

Within the TOTALs above:  Commercial ONLY Permits Issued 

Type of Permit Number Issued Total Valuation Notes 
Building 13 $23,349,428 1 Condo permit = 

$22,355,429 

Plumbing 2  1 VC/1 Condo 

Mechanical 13 $1,173,600 Hill Farm Condo/Golf 
Club 

    

    

 

 

Others:  Not under Building Official 

Type of Permit Number issued Notes 
Septic – new 13 6 new homes, 7 replacements 

Septic repairs 1  

Electrical  332 263 Alt, 6 Commercial, 63 OFP 

32



 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53


	City Council Agenda
	Item 6b.   - 1473. Updating Designated Polling Places for 2023 Elections.pdf
	Item 6c.   - 12.08.2022 TNT City Council Minutes.pdf
	Item 6c.   - 12.08.2022 City Council Minutes v2.pdf
	Item 6c.   - 12.30.2022 CCsp Minutes.pdf
	Item 6c.   - 1.9.2023 CCsp Minutes.pdf
	Item 6d.   - 2023 Holiday Schedule.pdf
	Item 6e.   - North Oaks and NYFS Agreement 12.2023.pdf
	Item 6f.   - 1474. Support for cty rd j 35E.pdf
	Item 9a.   - DOCSOPEN-#847629-v2-Amend_Tobacco_ORDINANCE_110.pdf
	Item 13a.   - December 2022 in Review.pdf
	Item 13b.   - Building report Annual 2022 Summary.pdf
	Item 13b.   - 2022 Building Inspector Report detail.pdf

